THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE AT CHATTANOOGA ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

3:00 p.m. ET Thursday May 7, 2020

Zoom Meeting https://tennessee.zoom.us/j/92295628241

ORDER OF BUSINESS

I.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL	2
II.	OPENING REMARKS	2
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF JANUARY 21, 2020 AND CALLED MEETING RCH 13, 2020	2
	RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING BOARD MEMBERS/ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEW MBERS	3
v.	ACADEMIC AFFAIRS UPDATE	3
VI.	FY 2020 PROPOSED BUDGET RECCOMMENDATIONS	5
VII	STRATEGIC PLAN	9
VII	I. MASTER PLAN	10
IX.	OTHER BUSINESS	10
X.	CLOSING REMARKS	10
XI.	ADJOURNMENT	10

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Chair Fred Decosimo called the meeting to order at 3:06 p.m. Ms. Terry Denniston, Secretary, called roll. The following Board members were present:

Muecke Barker Fred Decosimo (Chair) Serina Desai Carole Hoffman Scott LeRoy Gretchen Potts Benjamin Smith

A quorum was present.

Others in attendance included: Dr. Steven Angle, UTC Chancellor; Dr. Richard Brown, UTC Executive Vice Chancellor of Finance and Administration; Mr. Tyler Forrest, Associate Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance; Dr. Yancy Freeman, UTC Vice Chancellor of Enrollment Management, Student Success and Student Affairs; Dr. Jerold Hale, Provost and Senior Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs; Mr. Yousef Hamadeh, University Assistant General Counsel; Ms. Gina Stafford, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Communications and Marketing, and Ms. Kim White, UT Board representative.

II. OPENING REMARKS

Chair Decosimo invited Chancellor Angle to make opening remarks. Chancellor Angle thanked everyone for participating in the meeting. He noted that an update from Academic Affairs will be presented. He also noted that the University is planning to be open in the fall and a taskforce is in place working on how the university will do that safely and protect the quality of the academic programs. He is hopeful the taskforce will be able to come up with options and alternatives by June 5, 2020, to move the campus forward. It has taken a lot of hard work and effort on the part of UTC students, faculty and staff, along with the leadership team, everyone stepped up, and UTC got students through to graduation, including student representative Ben Smith.

III. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF JANUARY 21, 2020 AND CALLED MEETING MARCH 13, 2020

Chair Decosimo asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the January 21, 2020 meeting, which were provided to the Board members prior to the meeting. Ms. Hoffman noted that the minutes needed to be corrected to reflect that she was present at the January 21 meeting. With that correction, a motion was made for approval of the January 21, 2020 meeting minutes, which was seconded by Mr. LeRoy. The minutes were unanimously approved by a roll-call vote. A copy of the January 21, 2020 meeting minutes approved by the Board are included in **Appendix A** to these minutes. A motion was then made by Mr. LeRoy for the approval of the March 13, 2020 special

meeting called for the purpose of electing a new student representative; Judge Barker seconded the motion. The minutes were unanimously approved by a roll-call vote. A copy of the March 13, 2020 meeting minutes approved by the Board are included in **Appendix B** to these minutes.

IV. RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING BOARD MEMBERS/ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEW MEMBERS

Chair Decosimo asked Chancellor Angle to recognize outgoing board members. Chancellor Angle thanked Dr. Gretchen Potts for serving as the faculty representative on the board during its introductory term. He also thanked Ben Smith for serving as the student representative and congratulated him again on his degree. Mr. Smith will be attending UT Knoxville studying at the Bredesen Center in their data science in engineering doctoral program. For the coming year, Dr. Jamie Harvey will be the faculty representative. She is currently the Faculty Senate President. Ms. Rachel Worley, who will be a senior this coming fall, will serve as the student member on the board. They will join the board at the October 5, 2020, meeting. Chancellor Angle also thanked Judge Barker, who has agreed to serve another term on the board.

V. ACADEMIC AFFAIRS UPDATE

Chair Decosimo asked Provost Hale for an academic update. Provost Hale shared information regarding the following:

- Number of online courses vs face-to-face courses pre- and post-pandemic for the spring and summer terms.
- Most classes for the Summer short term will remain online. In order to keep students on track for a timely degree completion, it was decided that some courses had to be offered in a face-to-face setting. Dr. Chris Smith, head of the nursing school, has helped develop a series of safety protocols.
- Additional courses that must be completed face-to-face may include some clinical courses and some courses that are laboratory-based courses. Those might include not only the ones in health-related programs, but some programs in engineering or in the natural sciences, as well as some of the studio classes. The wearing of masks that would cover the nose and mouth area will be mandatory for any of the classes that are being taught face-to-face during the second summer session.
- Another issue is the option to allow students satisfactory/no credit grading. There was a petition circulated throughout the student body electronically that ended up with 3,173 signatures on it. The petition asked for the university to shift to mandatory pass/fail grading for all students in all courses. UTC does not have pass/fail grading but its version of that is satisfactory/no credit grading.
- UTC decided to create a system that let students voluntarily opt for S/NC grading up until the final day of instruction. UTC also extended the deadline for students to withdraw from courses without any penalty, if they wanted to do that, and allowed students to opt-in on a course-by-course basis with their S/NC grades.

- Nearly 3,200 students signed the petition that asked for mandatory pass/fail grading for all students in all courses. At the end of the month of April, 784 students opted for to S/NC grading –189 students opted in for all of their courses, 590 opted in for one or more but not all of their courses, and then four or five students, they opted in.
- UTC also extended the semester by a week and revised the final exam schedule. The Office of Research and Institutional Effectiveness ran a report shortly after the tornadoes came through the area to give an indication of how many UTC students, faculty and staff lived in zip codes where there was a direct tornado touchdown. UTC had more than 3,000 members of the university community directly affected by the storm in addition to everything else that was going on. Many did not have internet access or power for extended periods of time. Accordingly, UTC decided that the best thing to do was to extend the semester and revise the final exam schedule.
- The deadline for withdrawing from courses was extended, and compared to the Spring of 2019, there was an increase in the number of withdrawals from courses in Spring 2020, but also an increase in the number of courses that were offered. There was not a mass withdrawal from classes. UTC had a 2% increase in the percentage of students in 2020 compared to 2019 who withdrew from one or more of their classes.

Judge Barker asked if the same grading schedule will be used for these summer sessions as was used for this past semester. Provost Hale responded that when a course is loaded into the schedule for Summer, it will be loaded at that point in time as a course that is graded A through F or as a course that's graded S/NC and so we are using that same procedure. Nearly all of the courses that UTC will have for the summer session will be courses that will be graded A through F. Students will know when they enroll for a course for summer what the grading options are going to be before they enroll and they can pick and choose accordingly.

Ms. Hoffman asked how the S/NC grading affected scholarships. Provost Hale responded that the State was going to relax its policies and its benchmarks for checking on its progress toward degrees, so that if students who took S/NC courses, it would not affect their Hope Scholarships. UTC informed students that there was a chance that some of the federal scholarships or federal aid that they might get would be affected, and they were encouraged to talk with an academic advisor before opting in so they fully understood all of the implications. For the most part, a lot of the federal guidelines were relaxed because so many universities were moving to some version of pass, fail or S/NC grading.

Chair Decosimo asked Mr. Smith about how the students accepted what the university has done in terms of fairness or unfairness. Mr. Smith responded that, from a student perspective, what the university did was the best policy for students because students were able to pick and choose on individual classes. He indicated that the students also appreciated the policy.

Dr. Freeman added that a survey went out to all of the student body to gauge how students were feeling in light of the pandemic and how they progressing. Students who reflected a "full" rating, were sent a list of resources. Students who were on 75% got a list of resources. Those who were 50 and below received a personal phone call. UTC had roughly a thousand students who were on 50 and below in terms of their emotional state, and UTC made phone calls to all of those students. It was very well received. UTC had so many faculty and staff respond and volunteer to

connect with those students that they actually ran out of students to call. Through this entire process, UTC tried to keep a pulse on how our students were doing and tried to respond to any needs that they might have around, not just in relation to COVID, but also the tornado and all of the emotional distress that comes with having to postpone graduation.

Chair Decosimo thanked Dr. Freeman for his information and asked if there were any further questions for the Provost. He then acknowledged that Ms. Kim White, UTC's representative to the University of Tennessee System Board of Trustees, had joined the meeting. He then called on Chancellor Angle for a report on the budget.

VI. FY 2020-2021 PROPOSED BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS

Chair Decosimo called on Chancellor Angle for a report on the budget. Chancellor Angle first commented on a report by the local news that the Lupton Library and Fine Arts construction project was shut down because there were five positive COVID-19 cases from the construction company that is working on those two projects. There is one company doing both projects at the same time, and they have taken a 14-day timeout while they disinfect the area and put everybody into quarantine. They are not UTC employees.

Chancellor Angle noted that budget being reviewed today is one that UTC has worked very hard on and it is a second round due to the Coronavirus. UTC expected to have a 1.5% tuition increase but now there will be no increase. UTC is also trying to hold the line at all of its housing costs so that it can remain as affordable as possible for our students. Chancellor Angle then turned the meeting over to Dr. Brown to share information about the budget.

Dr. Brown thanked the members of the advisory board for their continued support and advocacy on behalf of UTC and thanked Kim White for being a member of the UT Board of Trustees. He noted that the COVID-19 pandemic has really impacted planning as UTC moves forward. He also thanked the members of the Chancellor's executive leadership team for their continuing good work and collaboration in putting the budget together. A lot of the original assumptions in the fall have been adjusted to ensure business continuity in Fall of 2020. Dr. Brown also thanked faculty for moving very quickly to stand up online instruction which helped with business continuity. The numbers that Provost Hale had previously shown really did make the difference in terms of being able to close the books in the black. Dr. Brown's presentation included the following key notes about the revised 2020-2021 budget:

• There are a lot of financial variables as UTC moves through this budget and financial planning process. The THEC recommendation for tuition and fees was originally from zero to 1.5%. UTC now knows that it will be zero in terms of tuition and fee recommendation. Tennessee families and our students are really reeling from the economic impact of COVID-19, and asking for a tuition increase would not be appropriate at this time. One of the things that UTC is looking closely at is State appropriations post-COVID-19. The General Assembly meets again in June. The university has a pretty strong

State appropriation recommendation and is hoping that will hold, but if it doesn't, then UTC will have make some other assumptions.

- Undergraduate and graduate enrollment impacts everything. Social distancing requirements will also impact how UTC stands up classrooms in the fall: the capacity of classrooms, whether or not UTC can do that effectively and safely. It also impacts the financial bottom line. Online instruction enhancements and investments in instructional technology are important in case classes need to be moved online quickly. Housing occupancy levels is as another big red flag on the auxiliary side of the house.
- Some red flag challenges: how to deal with face-to-face versus online tuition and fees? Auxiliary enterprises, food services, bookstore are also those things have a downstream effect and are red flag challenges post COVID-19.
- UTC is currently working redesigns of its food court and other interior spaces in accordance with CDC guidelines, which will restrict the numbers of students in those areas and impact revenues. Additionally, funding for UTC Athletics will be negatively impacted.
- The university is also looking at how to properly benchmark instructional support for contingent part-time faculty. All of those are red flag challenges for UTC. And to top that off, the UT system has announced it may try to stand up a new ERP financial management system. The current system is about 25 years old, and it is not going to be supported by SAP any longer. UTC has had some COVID-19 financial responses already. UTC refunded students over \$6 million for housing, meal plans, parking decals for that month that they were away from the university.
- UTC also invested in a student emergency fund through its development operations and foundations, as well as some internal campus appropriations to that fund. And UTC also altered its Summer 2020 fee assessments to ensure that it did not have a negative impact on student enrollments. For faculty and staff, 88% of faculty and staff have been working from home. UTC has avoided furloughing regular employees.
- UTC is looking to FEMA for reimbursements. The federal government has responded very quickly with the CARES Act distributions back to the campus. Over \$9.5 million dollars comes back to UTC. UTC just distributed \$4.7 million back to students. UTC has another \$4.7 million to come in, and that may be also some institutional relief if the Department of Education allows UTC to use those funds in that way. In terms of UTC's financial health, UTC had to take a deep dive into university finances and is continuously assessing its financial position.
- The budget projected to year end closing currently looks solid. If revenue assumptions continue to hold, UTC feels it can close the university books in the black with a reasonable amount of carry over funds. UTC has also implemented a selective hiring freeze. In order to get a position hired, the hiring department must have a compelling business for doing so at this time. UTC is also stressing conservative spending among its units. Any expenditure that exceeds \$10,000 must be reviewed by the procurement and budget team. UTC has slowed down expenditures as a result.

- UTC's primary goal for the budget process is to align its priorities with the strategic goals
 of the university, making sure that the full campus understands the budget and the
 transparency of process. The Chancellor and Dr. Brown hosted a town hall meeting last
 week via Zoom and over 500 faculty and staff showed up. They had a lot of good
 comments, building on strong financial stewardship, but working closely with the
 leadership team and making sure the budget and financial planning resource council has
 great input into the budget and planning process.
- Dr. Brown next provided an overview of the revised proposed budget, which included the following key notes:
 - Tuition and fees for UTC stands right now in state maintenance, \$7,836; total undergraduate resident tuition and fees of \$9,656.
 - There is a new tuition model for student from states like Kentucky and North and South Carolina and Georgia that border Tennessee. At \$17,734, UTC tried to lower the border-state/out-of-state tuition to be more competitive and attract more of those outof-state students who are academically high functioning students into the state of Tennessee to not only improve the quality of the university, but to improve the State's workforce as well. Out-of-state tuition still remains at about \$25,788. UTC has not been able to meet the break-even point on out-of-state graduate students yet, but the graduate school and all the deans are working really hard to really begin to make that pay off and UTC is optimistic.
 - UTC has discontinued its efforts to establish a Physician's Assistant program at UTC and has reallocated \$430,000 from the program. Institutional reserves and debt service are about \$5.9 million.
 - Tuition and fees constitutes about \$121 million of this proposed budget 58%. State appropriations \$62.8 million at 30%. A small amount coming from grants and contracts; auxiliaries pick up about 10% at \$20.6 million; sales and services and all those sources make an aggregate of \$210 million on E&G and auxiliaries.
 - Mr. Tyler Forrest next went through the actual proposed line item budget allocation per division.
 - The Chancellor's Office has a recurring allocation from the UC Foundation of \$10,000 for the UC Foundation Chancellor's Discretionary Fund. That is a longstanding distribution from the Foundation. There initially was a proposed vice chancellor of equity and inclusion, and the Chancellor has postponed that hire in light of the uncertain financial situation.
 - One of UTC's largest allocations is in Academic Affairs (a total of \$2.46 million), a lot of which being recurring dollars coming from the new Soar in 4 funding. Allocations for lecturers for additional sections in roadblock courses are being consolidated until closer to the fall semester when UTC can analyze enrollment trends better by program. There are allocations for additional academic advisors and colleges, career centers and things like that. Those are

also being centralized until enrollment trends can be seen better in the coming months.

- There is a reallocation of the Physician's Assistant program faculty and staff. In light of the current situation, the Chancellor, Provost, and others made the tough decision to forego establishing that program because of the tremendous costs associated with it, not just on the recurring side, but also some capital cost associated with that. That decision did bring some recurring dollars back to the budget. There were two faculty members associated with that program and one staff member. All are being reassigned into other academic programs on campus. There were some limited prior commitments for new tenure track faculty as well. Those were related to outstanding offers that had already been made and were in the works.
- Under Athletics, there is a \$25,000 nonrecurring allocation for a mental health counselor that is shared with the counseling and career center.
- The international student orientation services fee is being expensed out as well. And also in this area, they manage a number of facilities on campus that are either fee or auxiliary funded. So there's a facilities director position here. This was originally going to be an E&G funded position. However, with the current financial situation, this has been changed to auxiliary and fee funded. Here one of the top priorities for the Chancellor and the executive team was a new clinical case manager in the counseling center as well that not only serves that center, but compliments the request from athletics as well.
- Institutional is always one of our biggest budget and in the proposed budget is larger than most categories because as Dr. Brown mentioned, there is a one and a half percent salary pool included.
- Our biggest non-recurring allocation this year is something that was certainly important to the Chancellor and others was a \$2 million non-recurring set aside for a strategic emergency fund. This is in response obviously to the current situation, but would allow him and others to respond to not only things associated with this pandemic, but also swift changes in enrollment and other items that may come up that aren't predicted at this time. There's also a small non-recurring allocation for an information technology contractual services, which is the final payment of an IT contract that we're in right now.
- Under scholarship and fee waivers, going into this budget, we knew that we had between a two and a two-and-a-half million dollar gap in our institutional scholarship budget. This was the result of a positive component of our scholarship program, where our retention rates were higher, which caused high performing students to keep their scholarship funds longer than we had initially planned. So it's a good problem to have, but it is an expensive problem to have, which is what created that two to two-and-a-half million dollar gap. So we had gone into this budget process planning on a significant scholarship

investment, and we've tried to keep that and actually enhance it some in order to respond to the current situation as well. So you'll see on a recurring and nonrecurring basis, almost \$6 million being added to scholarships. A good portion of that will go toward closing that scholarship funding gap that I mentioned a minute ago. There's also nearly a million dollars being committed to increase funding and need based scholarships, because we do expect certainly an impact on our lowest income students, but also those students in the middle two income brackets, which tend to not be eligible for Pell dollars.

Dr. Brown thanked Mr. Forrest and asked if there were any questions. Chair Decosimo asked for a brief reminder of what the 15 /4 program. Dr. Brown responded that the 15 and 4 is a special tuition model that encourages students to take 15 hours or more per semester so they will effectively graduate in four years. Many of the dollars that are driven from that model will be used to support faculty to ensure that students don't have roadblock courses.

Judge Barker noted that in Mr. Forrest's report that there's been a set of almost \$3 million as a contingency and part of that is to provide for changes in perhaps in enrollment this year because of the coronavirus. He noted that he is hearing that there are going to be some reductions in enrollment across the country because of people being out of work and the virus and asked if there had been any evidence of that coming this year and, assuming the answer is yes, if someone was accepted this year, but not able to attend this year, how long will their acceptance be good for? Dr. Freeman responded that for just starting with summer and thinking about what the summer enrollment looks like, it has really held strong. As of yesterday, UTC was up a hundred students overall in terms of head count. So far, UTC's enrollment numbers for the fall semester, have held up as well. For the fall semester, UTC is running about a hundred students behind its number last year at this time, but is in on good footing overall.

Chair Decosimo asked if UTC has furloughed any employees. Dr. Brown responded it has not. UTC has put in place is a voluntary retirement incentive program. UTC has upwards of 40 retiring from the university. UTC will pay a bit of 50% of their salary out of the existing line. And then UTC will strong look at whether or not it need to refill that position, which provides a lot of budget flexibility.

Chair Decosimo thanked Dr. Brown and Mr. Forrest for their presentations. Dr. Potts moved for approval of the budget, with Ms. Hoffman and Mr. LeRoy seconding. There being no further discussion, Chair Decosimo called for a roll call vote. The budget was approved unanimously. A copy of the proposed budget approved by the board is included as **Appendix C** to these minutes.

VII. STRATEGIC PLAN

Chair Decosimo then called on Provost Hale to talk about the Strategic Plan. Dr. Hale noted the pandemic kept UTC from making some of the progress it had hoped to make on developing a new plan but has a schedule that the Provost thinks will provide a new strategic plan by the time

the current strategic plan expires. With the help of Tom Griscom, sub-committees have been formed from the steering committee that was put together.

The current strategic plan includes an introductory section on the University's mission, values and vision statements, and it includes four different goals. UTC will assign either the introductory section of the old strategic plan or one of the goals to each of the sub-committees and ask them to tell comment on what portions of that goal or of the strategic plan ought to be retained, if there's anything in it that they think is no longer relevant or a priority, and make some suggestions for things that are not included that they believe ought to be included.

The steering committee will use the information from those initial subcommittee meetings to begin discussions with various constituent groups and stakeholders that UTC wants to assist with developing the strategic plan.

Chair Decosimo asked who from the board is on the strategic plan committee. Ms. Desai and Mr. Leroy are serving.

VIII. MASTER PLAN

Dr. Brown noted that UT Knoxville, UT Martin, and UTC were scheduled to start new master plans. Due to COVID-19, the plans have been pushed back for a year to allow an opportunity for people to assemble. The State has recommended that and THEC agrees.

IX. OTHER BUSINESS

Chair Decosimo introduced Mr. Lofton Stuart as the Interim Executive Director of the UC Foundation. He also thanked everyone for their time to participate in the meeting and asked if there was any additional business to bring before the board.

Ms. Hoffman asked Provost Hale if the S/NC grading affects a student's overall GPA going forward. Provost Hale responded that S/NC grades do not figure into a student's grade point average at all and is only computed based on courses that they take in A through F grading.

X. CLOSING REMARKS

In closing, Judge Barker expressed his thanks to Dr. Potts and Mr. Smith for serving on the Board this year. There being no further business, Chair Decosimo also expressed his thanks to Dr. Potts and Mr. Smith.

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Decosimo asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Leroy so moved, and the motion was seconded. A roll-call vote was taken, and the motion was passed by unanimous vote. The meeting was adjourned.

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE AT CHATTANOOGA ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

1:00 p.m. ET Tuesday January 21, 2020 Foundation Room – University Center 615 McCallie Avenue Chattanooga, Tennessee

ORDER OF BUSINESS

I.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL	. 2
II.	OPENING REMARKS	. 2
III.	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 3, 2019	. 2
IV.	FISCAL YEAR 2021 BUDGET	. 2
v.	UTC STRATEGIC PLAN 2020-2025	.6
VI.	UT BOARD OF TRUSTEES PERFORMANCE AUDIT	.7
VII.	OTHER BUSINESS	.7
VIII.	CLOSING REMARKS	. 8
IX.	ADJOURNMENT	. 8

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Chair Fred Decosimo called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. Secretary Terry Denniston called roll. The following Board members were present:

Muecke Barker Fred Decosimo (Chair) Carole Hoffman Scott LeRoy Gretchen Potts Benjamin Smith

A quorum was present.

Others in attendance included: Dr. Steven Angle, UTC Chancellor; Dr. Richard Brown, UTC Executive Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration; Dr. Yancy Freeman, UTC Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management, Student Success and Student Affairs; Dr. Jerold Hale, Provost and Senior Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs; Mr. Tyler Forrest, Associate Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance; Ms. Gina Stafford, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Communications and Marketing; Mr. Yousef Hamadeh, University Assistant General Counsel.

II. OPENING REMARKS

Chair Decosimo thanked everyone for attending and invited Chancellor Angle to make a few opening remarks. Chancellor Angle noted the items on the agenda, including the proposed budget, strategic plan and the State Sunset Audit that was recently completed. Chancellor Angle mentioned some events that have taken place on campus, such as the academic night for intercollegiate athletes. Chancellor Angle also noted several accomplishments by the Athletics Department, including praise for Emily Blackman and the academic coaches for the academic success of UTC student-athletes – 20 of 22 student softball players had a 3.0 GPA or above, the women's soccer team members achieved similar GPAs, and the football team achieved its highest ever average team GPA.

III. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 3, 2019

Chair Decosimo asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the October 3, 2019 meeting, a copy of which was provided to the Board members prior to the meeting. Judge Muecke Barker made a motion to approve the minutes, with Mr. Scott LeRoy seconding. Chair Decosimo asked for any discussion. There being none, a voice vote was taken, and the motion carried by a unanimous vote. A copy of the October 3, 2019 meeting minutes approved by the Board are included in **Appendix A** to these minutes.

IV. FISCAL YEAR 2021 BUDGET

Chair Decosimo next invited Dr. Richard Brown, UTC Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration, to discuss UTC's 2020-2021 budget. Dr. Brown thanked Tyler Forrest and Chris Sherbesman, as well as Alison Evans, for their continued work on the university budget. Dr.

Brown noted that UTC is going into the third quarter of this year's budget and that it is financially in good shape. Dr. Brown's presentation included the following key notes about the 2020-2021 budget:

- \$205 million dollars make up the revenue portion of the budget tuition and fees account for almost 60% of revenue; State appropriations account for 29%; auxiliary services account for 10%; and other sources in sales, grants and contracts make up about \$5 million of revenues.
- Almost 40% of revenue will go to academic program needs and staffing; approximately 6% to scholarships; approximately 8% to institutional support; approximately 10% to the physical plant; and another 9% in academic support. Over the next two years, there will be a strong focus on reaffirmation of SACSCOC accreditation, which happens every 10 years. The Provost and the executive and academic leadership teams are working on the QEP, the quality enhancement project, that will require some investments.
- The Governor will announce his budget later this month, and UTC is hoping that he will continue to support full funding of the appropriations formula.
- Graduate out-of-state tuition rates were reduced about 50%, which will help UTC better recruit out-of-state students. Having a competitive enrollment management plan is very important as the disaggregation of public higher education in Tennessee means it's a very competitive higher education environment.
- The Provost is evaluating the academic affairs needs of UTC and the budget will support key academic positions throughout the university. There is a system-wide compensation benchmarking study that is ongoing. The results of the study should be available in March, and should show UTC's competitiveness regarding its compensation benchmarking.
- Regarding student housing growth, a new 600-bed residence was just opened, which is now full. UTC will be considering building another one as need arises.
- Further discussion about new campus strategic and master plans will take place. Additional items for discussion include online education what that will that look like for UTC and the University of Tennessee System, as well as IT funding and technology that affects the classrooms. UTC has a new Vice Chancellor for Information Technology, Vicki Farnsworth, who will be developing IT strategic plan that's going to require some investment from UTC in the next six months or so.
- The Chancellor, Provost, the budget team and Dr. Brown met with the deans of all the colleges and all the major operating divisions. Later this month, the Governor's budget will be released and that will give some indication of what the State will fund for UTC. UTC will continue to develop the budget all the way into May. On May 7, the Chancellor's final budget recommendations will be presented to the Advisory Board for approval. Once approved at the campus level, the budget will be presented to the UT Board of Trustees in June for final approval.

- UTC is recommending a 2% increase in tuition, which aligns with the recommendation of the Tennessee Higher Education Commission (THEC). A 2% increase will generate about \$1.6 million for UTC. 15/4 tuition dollars are estimated to be about \$2.2 million. These are the funds that UTC can utilize to make sure students can graduate in four years. The funds will help ensure UTC has enough courses and enough teaching faculty on the ground, along with academic support, tutors, etc. CCTA formula productivity growth is projected at \$2.1 million in funds for UTC. UTC continues to be at the top of the State in outcome productivity, and Dr. Brown is hopeful UTC will lead the State next year. For the first time in a long time, THEC has recommended \$1.2 million to support a 2% compensation pool for the university.
- In response to Dr. Potts's inquiry as to whether the 2% tuition increase and the tuition increases associated with the 15/4 tuition model would apply to all current students or just those who will be subject to the 15/4 model, Dr. Brown and Tyler Forrest responded that current students will be subject to the 2% increase and that new students coming in will also be subject to the 15/4 tuition rates, which will result in all students eventually being subject to the same tuition rate over time. Chancellor Angle commented that both UT Knoxville and UT Martin followed the same phased approach.
- Salaries and benefits total a 2% pool, which will be about \$2.2 million. A small benefit to institutional support will leave an unallocated amount of about \$1 million. UTC had to increase scholarship awards to stay competitive and to keep enrollment up, so UTC will be probably recommending some of that amount be used to support scholarships. UTC projects a balanced budget from the revenue that it has in the budget right now.
- Chair Decosimo asked whether UTC is having to hire additional instructors in order to facilitate the 15/4 structure. Dr. Brown responded in the affirmative, stating that the bulk of the tuition increase from the 15/4 model is being spent in that regard. A lot of the new faculty instructors are lecturers and adjunct instructors until UTC can assess what permanent faculty will be needed.
- In response to Chair Decosimo's inquiry, Dr. Brown indicated that UTC is close to being on track with respect to the revenues and expenses in this year's budget through December. Dr. Brown indicated that UTC may have a little bit of a surplus at the end because of vacant positions which have not been filled and other savings. Chancellor Angle indicated that UTC hit its projection on the number of students planned, but to meet the budget, the more important figures are how many of those students were fully Pell Grant eligible, how many UTC is providing scholarships, how many pay the full tuition fee, etc. Chancellor Angle further noted that UTC actually had more students who were offered financial aid packages who actually took them up it this time. Accordingly, UTC has had to redirect some funds to meet its financial aid obligations. Dr. Yancy Freeman added that, in addition to having more students who accepted financial aid than projected, UTC had more students this year who continued their progression, which also contributed to higher than predicted financial aid costs.
- Ms. Hoffman asked for clarification on whether UTC offers more in financial aid than it has allocated in funding for financial aid based on trends as to how many it expects to actually accept financial aid. Dr. Freeman responded that was correct. Dr. Brown noted it is a good

problem to have so if the students continue to progress, the CCTA formula allocation will actually account for that outcome and increase UTC's share of the allocation.

- Chair Decosimo asked where UTC is now in terms of where it was five years ago with retention. Dr. Freeman responded that the first year retention rate is slightly down, but is still up significantly from where UTC was five years ago. This past year UTC had at a 72% retention rate for first-time freshmen students. UTC hopes and believes it can achieve an 80% retention rate. Dr. Freeman also indicated UTC is also building some things into its program for retention of second year students. Chair Decosimo noted that the UC Foundation made some grants for resident assistants to knock on doors to encourage students to go to class, which would help improve 4-year graduation rates, and thought the effort had a fairly quick impact. Dr. Freeman responded that the Housecalls program did have a positive impact.
- Dr. Brown discussed the voluntary retirement incentive program (VRIP), which UTC does every four to five years. Out of 176 eligible employees, 49 submitted applications and 37 signed agreements that have been approved by UT System CFO David Miller. Participants were notified in December. All university units have been notified of the employees who have elected to take advantage of this benefit. Total estimated salary dollars impacted and available for reallocation after implementation of the program was about \$2.6 million. The vacated positions will come back centrally to the attention of the Chancellor, Provost and Dr. Brown, who will then evaluate whether the position will go back to the unit or to reallocate the position somewhere else.
- In 2019, the domestic graduate out-of-state tuition rate was again reduced by 50%. He complimented the Communications and Marketing Department on the great job they did coming up with marketing materials for those states that border Tennessee to help advertise this program. UTC is marketing and trying to recruit enough out-of-state students in order for the decrease in tuition funds to have a revenue neutral effect. Just about every public university in Tennessee is implementing similar out-of-state tuition reduction plans, so the change is an attempt to make UTC more competitive in recruiting out-of-state students.
- UTC has almost \$46 million spread over 9 construction projects in progress. Another nine projects are in the design phase and are estimated to cost about \$75 million. Thirteen projects have been approved for funding at about \$8 million in small projects. In response to an inquiry from Chair Decosimo, Dr. Brown indicated that about \$37 million dollars of the total allocated for capital projects is for the Lupton Library renovation.
- Dr. Brown provided an overview of the planned process for developing a new Facilities Master Plan for the campus, which is projected to take approximately 18 months. The process will involve internal committee meetings as well as input from external parties, including UTC's campus neighbors. A proposed plan will be presented for recommendations and approval to the Advisory Board in 2022. After approved at the campus level, it will be presented to the UT Board of Trustees. After approval by the UT Board of Trustees, it will be presented to THEC for final approval. The final plan will come to the advisory board in 2022. He indicated that Chancellor Angle would like at least two members of the Advisory Board to serve on the master planning committee. The committee will be looking at how UTC

utilizes its current facilities, the percentage of facilities being utilized, the campus master housing plan and projected student growth, athletics facilities, and landscape planning.

V. UTC STRATEGIC PLAN 2020-2025

After Dr. Brown concluded his presentation on the 2021 fiscal year budget, Provost Jerold Hale shared information on the process for developing UTC's new strategic plan. The current strategic plan, which runs through 2020, is winding down and coming to an end. The university is in a dramatically different place now than it was when the current strategic plan was put in place. The most dramatic change is in the nature of the relationship between UTC and the larger Chattanooga community.

The strategic plan committee will be smaller than the last one, and the nature of the listening sessions and meetings will also be somewhat different. The first step in the strategic planning process was to put together a strategic planning steering committee, the composition of which is identified in the packets provided the Board members. In order to make sure that every division of the university was represented, Dr. Hale reached out to all of the vice chancellors and then to all of the deans and asked them for recommendations. Both staff employee entities on campus, the Employee Relations Council and the Exempt Staff Council, are represented. UTC students are also represented, including the Graduate Student Association President and the Student Government Association President. There are three committee positions to be determined and Dr. Hale indicated that he would like the Advisory Board to have representation on the committee. Additionally, he is still waiting on a representative to be named from the UC Foundation.

Dr. Hale next gave an overview of the proposed timeline for the planning committee. There are four basic tenants or goals for the committee:

- Focusing on instructional excellence and guaranteeing students the kinds of educational experiences that will serve them well after they leave the university.
- Increasing or improving the university's research profile.
- Being good stewards of UTC's resources, including its philanthropic efforts and development efforts related to the UC Foundation.
- Ensuring that the UTC campus is a diverse and inclusive campus.

Dr. Hale expects for the committee to accomplish its work within the proposed timeline because he does not envision any radical changes from the current plan, but rather a revamping and refreshing of the items in the current plan.

In response Ms. Hoffman's inquiry, Dr. Hale provided a more detailed overview of how committee representatives were selected.

In response to an inquiry from Chair Decosimo, Dr. Hale indicated that an analysis of which goals in the current plan that UTC accomplished is published online on the UTC website. The website provides a year-by-year analysis, complete with data, about how UTC has done with each of the identified goals. Chair Decosimo noted the Advisory Board has two opportunities as a board to significantly participate—the master plan and the strategic plan. Ms. Serina Desai has a preference to participate on the master plan committee. Ms. Hoffman previously volunteered to serve on master plan committee. Mr. LeRoy offered to work on the strategic plan committee. Chair Decosimo also offered to serve on the strategic plan committee.

Chair Decosimo thanked Dr. Hale for his presentation, noting that it is an exciting time to see what the next five years is going to bring to UTC.

VI. UT BOARD OF TRUSTEES PERFORMANCE AUDIT

Chair Decosimo next asked Dr. Brown to present information about the results of the State Sunset Audit for the University of Tennessee system and campuses. Dr. Brown noted that, about every five years, the State Comptroller of the State of Tennessee conducts a performance audit of the University of Tennessee. Dr. Brown provided an overview of the areas assessed by the audit. With respect to specific items assessed in the audit regarding UTC, Dr. Brown noted that the audit made findings and recommendations regarding several campus safety issues, and that UTC has already implemented or was in the process of addressing those findings and recommendations. Dr. Brown's presentation of the audit findings and UTC's response to the audit can be found here. During the presentation, several campus safety issues were discussed including, when UTC issues Clery Act warnings, how UTC notifies the campus community of emergency and/or public safety situations, UTC's fulfillment of its crime reporting obligations, campus physical security features (e.g., controlling access to facilities, etc.), and cooperation with and delineation of responsibilities between UTCPD and the Chattanooga Police Department.

Dr. Potts inquired about UTC's efforts to address the increased need for mental health services for students. Dr. Freeman gave an overview of the mental health services available to students and programs that have been established to address mental health concerns, including its suicide prevention strategies. Dr. Freeman noted that more students are utilizing campus counseling services. Dr. Potts noted that the wait times for receiving counseling services seem to be growing and asked about what actions UTC is taking to address the issue. Dr. Freeman indicated that there is a recognized need to expand capacity due to the increase in need for such services. The counseling center added a counselor and a psychiatric nurse practitioner, and UTC will be adding a clinical case manager. Dr. Freeman further noted that additional resources and options are being evaluated for funding.

VII. OTHER BUSINESS

Chair Decosimo next asked Assistant General Counsel Yousef Hamadeh to discuss the student board member appointment. Mr. Hamadeh noted the next scheduled regular board meeting is May 7, but that the state statute requires the Advisory Board to select the next student member by April 15. Mr. Hamadeh indicated that he is looking at ways for the board to make the appointment by the required deadline, and that a special meeting may need to be called in advance of the regular May 7 meeting. He concluded that he will provide guidance to Secretary Denniston and Chancellor Angle on options, which will then be communicated to the board.

VIII. CLOSING REMARKS

Chancellor Angle shared two things that are taking place on campus. There is an ongoing search for Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences. There will also be a search for the Vice Chancellor for Development and Alumni Affairs and Executive Director of the UC foundation. The Foundation will be using Aspen Leadership Group, which conducted the search that brought Marty Smith to the Foundation as the Associate Vice Chancellor for Development and Alumni Affairs. Their price structure is competitive, and Mike Costello, the Chair of the Foundation Board, was very comfortable with them. Kerry Witcher, the UTFI President, was also comfortable with them, and Chancellor Angle feels that it is a good firm.

Dr. Potts asked when the Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences candidates will be on campus. Dr. Hale responded that he did not have that information at hand, but that UTC will continue to accept applications and that candidates are guaranteed full consideration if they apply on or before January 22. Dr. Daniel Pack, Dean of the College of Engineering and Computer Science, is chairing that search committee. Dr. Hale received a preliminary report from Dr. Pack, and that as of Friday of last week, there were 70 completed applications and several more that were in partial completion stages that Parker Executive Search (who is running the search) believe will be completed before the deadline.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Decosimo asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Leroy so moved, and Judge Barker seconded the motion. The motion was passed by unanimous vote. The meeting was adjourned.

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE AT CHATTANOOGA ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

9:00 a.m. ET Friday March 13, 2020 Foundation Room – University Center 615 McCallie Avenue Chattanooga, Tennessee

ORDER OF BUSINESS

I.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL	.2
II.	OPENING REMARKS	.2
III.	SELECTION OF STUDENT MEMBER TO THE BOARD	.2
IV.	CLOSING REMARKS	.2
v.	ADJOURNMENT	.2

APPENDIX B

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Chair Fred Decosimo called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. Ms. Terry Denniston, Secretary, called roll. The following Board members were present:

Fred Decosimo (Chair) Serina Desai Carole Hoffman Scott LeRoy Gretchen Potts Benjamin Smith (via telephone)

A quorum was present.

Others in attendance included: Dr. Steven Angle, UTC Chancellor; Dr. Yancy Freeman, UTC Vice Chancellor of Enrollment Management, Student Success and Student Affairs.

II. OPENING REMARKS

Chancellor Angle thanked everyone for attending the meeting to select the next student board member, noting that the bylaws of the board do not allow meeting by phone.

III. SELECTION OF STUDENT MEMBER TO THE BOARD

Chair Decosimo announced that there were several candidates for consideration for the next student member position on the Board for the term commencing on July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. Chair Decosimo noted that all candidates were impressive. Gretchen Potts made a motion to select student-candidate Rachel Worley for the position. Serina Desai and Carole Hoffman seconded the motion. Chair Decosimo called for discussion. Ms. Desai shared that she thought the candidates were well prepared, but felt Ms. Worley answered every question right away and in full. Ms. Hoffman felt Ms. Worley had some knowledge that the others may not have and felt her sincerity about the student body and connecting with them. The motion for the selection of Rachel Worley as the next student member carried by unanimous vote.

IV. CLOSING REMARKS

The next board meeting is scheduled for May 7. Dr. Potts noted that she will be moving off the board at the end of June and Dr. Jamie Harvey, Faculty Senate President, will join the board on July 1.

V. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Decosimo asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr. LeRoy so moved, and Ms. Hoffman seconded the motion. The motion was passed by unanimous vote. The meeting was adjourned at 9:19 am.

Appendix C

University of Tennessee Chattanooga Fiscal Year 2020-21 Advisory Board Operating Budget Recommendation

Proposed Current Operating Fund Budgets							
Fund Group	Revenues	Expenditures & Transfers					
Unrestricted Educational & General (E&G) Funds	\$189,788,150	\$189,788,150					
Unrestricted Auxiliary Funds	\$20,691,519	\$20,691,519					
Subtotal: Unrestricted Funds	\$210,479,669	\$210,479,669					
Restricted Funds	\$59,623,312	\$59,623,312					
Total Current Operating Funds	\$270,102,981	\$270,102,981					

		TUITION		TUITION + FEES	
Recommended Changes to Tuition & Mandatory Fees		\$-change	%-change	\$-change	%-change
In-State	Undergraduate (Soar in Four)	-	-	\$14	0.1%
In-State	Undergraduate (Enrolled Before Fall 2019)	-	-	\$14	0.2%
In-State	Graduate	-	-	\$14	0.1%
TN Border State	Undergraduate (Soar in Four)	NEW	NEW	\$14	0.1%
TN Border State	Undergraduate (Enrolled Before Fall 2019)	NEW	NEW	\$14	0.2%
TN Border State	Graduate	-	-	\$14	0.1%
Out-of-State	Undergraduate (Soar in Four)	-	-	\$14	0.1%
Out-of-State	Undergraduate (Enrolled Before Fall 2019)	-	-	\$14	0.1%
Out-of-State	Graduate	-	-	\$14	0.1%
International	Graduate	-	-	\$14	0.1%

The Chancellor shall submit the Advisory Board recommendation and the Chancellor's original budget recommendation to the President for review no later than May 27, 2020.